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MELOHIRSHNAND We have here Don ller and Nancy
Iler on behalf of the FPlaintiff. Wwhy don't we each
identify ourselves?

I'm Ioby Hirshman, H-i-r-s-h-m-a-n,
and 1'm here on behalf of seville tamily Practice and
Pr. Dbavid Apgar, A-p-g-a-r.

Does the court reporter have a 1list
of partieg heéere in this case?

MEL IR

EADON:

Yes, she doesgs.

ME L. HIRSHMAN: I''m here on behalf of those two.
1l will then tell you, also, whce L'l here on behalf of
after everyone elge introduces themseives.

M. MIANRKLER: I'm Pat Minkler, M-i-n-k-l-e-r.
L'm here on kehalf of tdwin shaw Hospital and Medina
community Hospital.

M. sWLETI: I"m Busan swift, g8-w-i-f-t. I'm he
on behalf of Akron City Hospital.

MR. HIRSHMAN: Aot here 1s Gary Banas, who may
may not be sending somebody, and he has -- who are the

parties he represents?

MR. TREADOAN:
MR. HIRSHMAN:
MR. TREADON:

Dr. weingart, 1 believe.

Weingart, Miller and Shapiro.
I'hey were dismissed --

The corporation of them,

re

or
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TULl4 we have the name and phone

has not, which means that the

haven't ver had anvbody identify

f other people are represented by

Tezzi (phonetic) .

MPE L PREALON Ok an tor her benefit, lobv,
heve for gy, Apoary?

ME. HIRSEMAN: A Fevilie ramily Practice.
MELOIREADON G Heoe~-v-i-i-1-e Ftamily Practice and
S A-pP-g-a-1r.

N HEIREHMAN in addition, 1 represent

liang, tC-a-n-i-l-az2-n-g, bLr. McRoherts,
“pD-e-r-t-s, Ur., Burdette, B-u-r-d-e-t-t-e,

respective profesesional

ting firm of the court reporter,
My nmawe 1g Barbara ANick, A-i-c-k,
-1, and Mesggina, M-e-g-s-i-n-a.

s or phone number?

bBoth, please.

79 west Monroe, Suite 1107, Phone

ls that Chicago?
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1HE REPOKILR: Yes, |'m sorry.

MK. HIKSHMAN: Wwhat's the zip?

THE REPORILK: 60603,

MR. TREADON: Ihis iIs the first time that she's
ever testified during a deposition, so she's nervous.

MR. HIRSHMAN: Barbara, this is the last you're
going to hear of me. ‘
MR . TREADON: For evervboedv's benefit, if,

indeed, there are any objections, 1 would appreciate it

f when vou make your objection, that vou identify who

e

vou are for the court reporter, of course.
And 1f evervbody's ready, we'll have
tile court reporter swear the witness.
MR. LLER: Okav.
{witness duly sworn
by the court reporter.)
MR. 1LtR: Let the record refiect that all the

parties to this litigation have been notified about the

deposition and that the deposition Dr. Kitel -- IS that
correct, h-i-t-e-17?

MR. TREADON: hetel, h-e-t-e-1.
MR. 1LER: Okay, Dr. Ketel. All the attorneys
have been notified about br. hetei's deposition and

we're prepared to go aheadqd.
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Vvour ou
yvou’y

want to
all hav

W. BRULUE

45 a wiltness herein
Was examined upon o
ed as follows:

EXAMIN

By MHEL,
0 poctor, would
T tTae record:
A i Bruce, B-r
() What 1e yvowm
A 2040 vallev L
(Q And where is
A Glenview 15 3
n Chicacc

Q And vou are a

rriculum vitae 0o

A Yes, 1 do.

Q Look at 1t an
add or delete from

e,

A It's dated 11

(3]

Kblel, M.D.,

, having been first duly

ral interrogatories, and

et

in relationship to

AW
<
'

miles north of

phyvsician, and I'm looking at

vaeu happen to have that with

d see 1f there's anything you

the curriculum vitae which we

/89, and it's current.
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MK. TREADUN: Don, the

one Yyou have may be dated

cornery, and that's the one

I haa. Ihe firet page, lower right-hand corner, there's
a date, 5,89, Or do vou have an 11/897
MK. 1LEER 1 have an 11/&9. we're okay, Doctor.

MR

By MR

FAERY

1LER:

o
gming

vour mecdic

jot]

1 batkground ang v

vou are board certified, acco
Vvitae, and it indlicates vou a3
field of neuvrologyv; 1¢ that

A Correct.,
v A A 7
@] Ao yYou ' re alsc

[

electromyograpliv,; CoOrred

A Correct.
() What 1s electron
A tlectromyography

analvze

i
]
-
D
o))
3

Q tg that 1ike an
A Electromyaography

correct.
Q Then yvou're also

electrodiagnoctic medicine.

Hrcing to

d muscle

take the time

our training, except to ask
Vvour curriculium
the

in

certified

-
D
¥
B!
o]
=
L

Doctor?

certified in
vograpny
i¢ the electrical tests

abnormalities.

ELMLG,. test?

ig an L.M.G. test;
certified in
Can vou tell us what that's
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All rignt. I'ne American Board of

Electrodiagnostic Medicine IS a board organization which

formed in 19

M
i
)

e L

org
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day
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ga, Basically, that's defining my board

1o in electromyography that is now by an

nizarion
ed belnr
tromyogr

now heen

)
(15}

Ameri

re propo

tromyogr

A

9

insofar

A

rrevious to that, the only

that certified electromyographers was

re the American Association of

aphy and tlectrodiagnosis.
S0, when we look at electromyography, that

changed to a certification in the same areas

can bBoard of bElectrodiagnostic Medicine:

Yol a

There's no additional certification that
sing to us, other than the certification in
aphyv; dids that correct?

And neurology, correct.

Ul course, neurology.

pboctor, wnat do yvou do Ffrom day to

as seeing patiente?

1'm a ciinicai neuroiogist. I have a

private practice in neurology. North Suburban XNeuro
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the corporation for which 1 work.
lhere are four neurologists in my

group. We basically cover geveral hospitals and have a

large office practice in clinical neurology.
0 Wlhiat hospitals 42 vou have privileges at,

A Lutheran General Hospital in Park Ridge.
o I'm gorryy, LDoctor. wag that Lutheran?

4 Kight.

() Ihank you.

A fake rorest Hospital in Lake forest, and

torest hHoepital in Des Plaines, Those are our current

three hospitals.

1) Aart vonr office address is in Des Plaines?
A Lorrect

J And where 1s that from Chicago?

A Apout 25 miles northwest of downtown

Chicago. ke're just north of O'Hare Airport just off

9 Okavy. So, then, Doctor, vou see patients
from day to day in your practice in the field of
neurology.

A Correct.,

Q And associated with the group, are there
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1 any vascular surgeons?

Do

A Ao vascular surgeons. he're all board

3| certified neurologists.

4 Q and the hospitals that vou enumerated for
5 | ue, those are the hospitals where vou admit patients?
6 A Caorrent. Bagsically, we admit patients to

~

Lutheran teneral Hospital and Lake torest Hospital.
& Our work at rorest Heospital -- It"s a

9 hospital. e're a consultant there. he

o]
n
§ -
7
[N
Q
—t
e
]
]

ually admit patients there.

r+

10 don't ac

11 W OkRay and do yveou serve 0N any boards of

1 any of the hospitalg?

13 A A i

13 0 bocter, for purposes of the record, you are

15 not a vascuiar surgeonn.

16 A 4 am not a vascular surgeon.

17 0 and you do not practice in that field of
18| medicine?
19 A 1 do not do vascular surgery, correct.

20 Q And you do not treat problems of patients
21 | who have serious vascular disease?

22 A Ao, that's not correct. You know, part of

23 | neurology is the care and treatment of patients that

have strokes, which would be considered a vascular

[
o
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You do not perform endarterectomies?
No, 1 do not.

bo you refer any of your patients to

vascular surgeons who do perform endarterectomies?

A
§)
your patien

A

AT times, ves, 1+ do.
Anc at what hospitals do those doctors see
s to perform endarterectomies?

Basically, Lutheran General Hospital. My

associates have had some patients who had

endarterect
lhe majorait
Hospital.

L

omies up at lake torest Hospital, as well.

y of my patientg are at Lutheran General

I assume in tnis case of Leonard urogeii,

poctor, you are not going to give an opinion in this

case as an

expert insafar as whether Or not a carotia

endarterectomy Shouid have been performed on Leonard

Drogell.

A
disease, it
throughout
could have

that we're

Q

No, I have opinions concerning his vascular
s origin, tne degree that it was present
the multiple hospitalizations ana what care
been rendered to him during any of the time
talking about in this cacse.

Okay. But insofar as giving a medical
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records
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believe
referred
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0

Room rec

through

Y

June 4th

or not an endarterectomy should have been
d by a vascular surgeon on Leonard Drogell?
Yes, I hniii.

boctor, can you tell us, how did vou get

prepare yourself for this deposition? What

I had originally reviewed a great many
that were referred to me. subseqguent to that, I

ther

D

Was one or two more depositions that were

in prep

jo3}
"3

ing for this deposition.
I re-reviewed all of the material. 1
lyzed and reviewed the angiograms that were

d on thie patient in 1987.

pig you review the Medina Hospital records?

And did vou review the Akron City kmergency
ords of 5/25/867

Yes, 1 did.

Ihe medical admission of Mav 25, 1986
June the 4th of 'g¢g.

Yes, 1 did.

The tdwin shaw Hospital records from

through vuly 8th of '867
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0 seville tamily records?

A Pardon?

@] the gevillie ramily records?

3 LoGon’t o think : sav seville tamily records.
0 Okay, And did vou gee the Akron'General

Hospital records for the admicsicn of tepruary, 19877

4 ves, Lodiaq
0 OF 3 now, did vou read the deposition of

Pr. Golcdman:

A ke AVEeryY, pr. burdette --

(Q Ohan

A - - L Munrdinger and D Vanna. I did not
read & depogitic af oy Goldman,

0 Yo did net vead the deposition of

Dr. Apgar?

A N
t) Pid not read the depogition of

Drs. Canilang, McRoberts and wWeingart?

A NOL.

0 0id not read the deposition of Dr. Shapiro?
A NO.

0 Did not read the deposition of Dr. Bergan

or Dr. Morganstern-Clarren?
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And di1d not review the testimony of

0 Insofar as preparing for your opinion

did vou look at the arteriogram films that were

one on Leonard Lrogell?

Yes, 1 did.
0 And did you look at the original films?

1 Iooked at the films that were sent to me

2

£'m assuming that those were coples.
( tow many films did you look at, and do vou
have their dates?
MK, PREADODNS Wwell, Dbon, [ can represent to you
that 1 providea the films that you provided to me.
lhere's three different sets. ieft caroti
angiogram, right carotid angiogram, left vertebrae, and

A/r and laterais in each.

date,

& And the dates of those ieft and right
angiograms and the laterals, do they bear one particula
boctor?
tebruary 13th of '§77?
4 Yes, 2/13/87.
Q 1 think they’re ail that same date, aren’t

d

r

|
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thev?

A As fat- as I am aware, yves.

G A vou reviewed those films.

A Yes, 1 did.

O were those filmes dmportant or part of the
opinicn you're going to render today?

A Yes, they are.

0 N wWhat way’?

A Bzelicalily, they confirm my opinion that 1
arrived at from reviewing the medical records and helped
subgTtantiate the= etliology of the pilateral internal
caroticd apnormality and disease that he had.

() Gray bid you review the -- strike that.

Doctor, the arteriograms which were
performed on Lecrnard that vou reviewed, are those

arteriograms and lnterpretations of those, are they
found in the heogpital records for Akron General?

A lhere 1g an dinterpretation of those
angiograms in the Akron General record, ves.

Q Do vou disagree with the written
interpretation of the arteriograms that you have ‘

reviewed and the interpretation

physician in the Akrcn General rec

bo vou disagree

which

was made by the
ords?

with that
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radiologist's interpretation of Leonard Drogell's
arteraog: anis:'

A 1 don't disagree with his interpretation

M
st
)]
for?
}-

that bilate internal carotid occlusions were present

right and left and that a great, significant amount of

2
oy
“
ot
ot
o
ct

ersei circulation wag present from the external

carotid

mn
§ot

vestem through the brain and into the vertebral

mn
[
n
ot
D
o]
3
t
b
3
Ve

‘cugh the posterior Vvessels going to the brain.
6 Okav. May 1 have just a moment, Doctor?

You have that written report in front
of you that 1g dated, Doctor, tebruary 13, '87, signed

by L.J. Gordon, M.D.?

MRLOLIREADODN: he're looking for it.
A DAy, L have 1t.
() 1ou gsee where 1t save bilateral carotid --

Ihe very first paragraph 1in capitals talks about
bilateral carotid cerebral and left vertebrae
arteriograms and consultation.

A That's correcrt.

Q And who is DbLr. 1.J. Gordon, M.D. that
authored this report?

A 1 ani assuming that he is a radiologist in

the department of radiology of Akron General Medical

Center and the phvsician that interpreted these studies
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i | and may weii have been the physician that performed
2 | them, because usually the person that does the test
3 | interprets the test.

4 Y You do not perform these tests on your
5| patieénts, do you?

6 A No, 1 don’t. 1 order them frequently.
7 | they are performed at my hosgspitals by the radiology
8 | department.

3 0 Okav. and the interpretation of the

10 | arteriograms, when theyv are done at vour hospitals for

11 | your patients, vou leave the interpretation to the

12 | radiologist who did it oOr reviewed the arteriograms?
i3 A Jhe tyvpewritten interpretation that becomes

14 | a part of the medica: records 1S one provided by the
15 | radiologist that pericrms and interprets the study.

16 1 fregquently review these studies

et
[®)

17 | a st aiways with the radiologist, and if 1 disagree
18 | fully with their interpretation, then t write in further
19 | analysis based on my clinical interpretation of the

20 | angiograms, as weli ac a part of that record.

21 2 You're not board certified in radiology?
22 A no, 1'm not.
23 Q Hold on a second. l'm going to ask you to

24 | hold on a second. 1 think somebody from Banas' office
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may nhave Jjust arrived. Hold on Ior just a minute.

sorry, lom; | was wrong. Nobody's

here from Garv's office.

ME L. TREADON: Okay.

0 Vkay, Doctor; we will proceed,

s there any variance in your

interpretation of br. 1.J. Gordon's arteriogram written

report of February the i3th, 19677

(Ve

A Basically, | agree that bilateral internal
CArotia artery occlusions were present and thart
significant cocllateral circulation was present

throcughout the angiograms.

v
C\
—
=
(8]
n
[
9}
jo1]
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[

agree with his
lnterpretation; correct,
0 And did you take his interpretation to mean

that there was complete internal carotid blockage of

03]
ot
D
i

t and right carotid arteries when the
film was taken tebruary 13th, '8§7°7

A Ilhat is what the angiogram shows and that
IS what 1 interpret him to mean when he sal-s, "bilateral
internal carotid artery occlusions are present.?”

Q And do vou interpret that report of

February the 13th, 1987 and vour review of the
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arteriogram films themgelves to mean that there was no
blood fiow -- n-o, blood flow going through lLeonard

Drogell's right and left carotid arteries February 13th,

19877

A Lteft and right internal carotid arteries;:
TOYYeaT

Q0 Ana there was no blood flow going through
the 1efr ard right internal carotid arteries; that's
Vour o opinion? \

A ioagryee with thart, vesgs

] and that for every day that Leonard 1lived
after rebruary the 13th, 1987, what was supplying blood
to Leonard's hrain?

EN ihe right and left vertebral arteriesgs,
which come up through the back of the neck into the back
part of the brain,.

Also, the very significant large

F

cellarteral bhiood flow svetem which ne had del-eloped over
many years supplied by the right and 1eft external
carontid arteries, which wag patent and flowing off of
the right and Ieft common carotid artery.

9 When you say, "patent," you mean open?

A Correct.

9 Okav. &are there any other arteries which
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carotid arteries,
50,

Leonard,

without inte

suppiying

n oto
19877
collateral

Ny

ieg, bhut the

external carotid arteries

rreriegs.

u have g

on, based on

e review of
genital --
It and left
hig 1ife,
ral

and had
the hr
opinion that

absence of th

was present
then,

rnal right

clirculation

hegalthy

was born,

and

20

Leonard Drogell's brain

g coming off of
four main vessels

and the

ol

1

o)

opinion,

the review of all

the angiograms,
meaning born
internal carotid

he developed very

from the

right and left
the absence of
e internal right

throughout his

according to

left arterial
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arteries; right?

A Right and left internal carotid arteries.

") vkay. And how did you come to that
conclusion?

A Fasically, after reviewing the medical
records, it was my impression that he had complete
occlusion of his internai carotid arteries from prior to
the stroke of 5/26/86.

All of the carotid esaminations

performed during the phivsical exams Of Lr. Burdette on

5/27/86 or 5/26/86 and the subsequent carotid exams at

“the rehaix hospitel, tdwin shaw Hospital, and in the E.K.

on admission at Akron General Hospital, whenever the

carotid arteries were reported -- examined throughout

-
N
o

these medical records, these \.esse]s here palpable but
never showed carotid bruits.

lhe fact that no carotid bruits were
ever evidenced 1s consistent Kith the finding on the
angiogram of 2/13/87 of bilateral absence or
occlusion -- occlusion meaning there's no opening into
that vessel -- found on the angiogram.

when | reviewed tine angiograms, it

was ciear that the origin of where the internal carotid

arteries should be were -- there was a smalil nubbin of
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an arterial pocketr there, that this nubbin was very
smooth IN appearance, not ragged as is usually seen when
there ic a hardening of the arteries Or artherosclerotic
occlusion causing closure of the vessel.

Algo, when reviewing the angiogram,

the very large, very significant collateral circulation

present meant that the carotid occlusions had to be
evident -- had to exist for manv vears. One does not

develop that degree of arterial colla

-t

erals supplying a
person’'s brain in a very short period of time.
Also, 1in reviewing the carotid

voppler study, the carotid boppler study done on

2/11/787, couple of days before the angiogram, they also
confirmed the presence of complete occlusions. I'hey
comment on calciflcations belng present where the origin

of the Internal carotid arteries should be.

When one 1s looking at studieg,

-t

poppler studi

s
5]

. angiograms of somebody 38 vears old,
Vascular calcifications should not be present at all.
When a calcification is present in a blood vessel, that
means that an abnormality must have existed in that area
for many years.

calcification in a blood vessel, be

it from a vascular anomaly, congenital anomaly -— a$ in




10

11

21

22

23

24

absence of a vessel -- or a disease such as

arthrosclercotic occlusion, calcification means 1t had to
be there for vears and years.

rutting all of this together -- And
reviewing the angiogram, several other vessels appeared
smaller than they normally should. Putting together the
analveis thar a iongstanding abnormality Of the vessels
was present, and in view oOf the smoothness of the nubbin
at the base of the origin of the internal carotid

arteries, L reached the final conciusion that the

long-existing absence of these vessels was congenital in

origin. Ihat's a long answer.

Q Can 1 go back over portions of tnat answer

A Yee, you can.

Q in arriving at your conclusion that Leonard
did nor have internal carotid arteries, you relied on
the diagnostic finding of some physicians of no bruits.
A Ccorrect.

Q And it's your opinion that since there were
no bruits, that added to the congenital absence of
internal caroti'd arteries.

2 No. Again, taking this, as I found it --

my original review was of the medical records. When 1
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reviewed
question

carotid a

24

the medical records, and in looking at the

of status,

rteries, a

clinical findings relevant to the

ii of the physical exam findings when

the carotid arteries were mentioned in 1986 and 1987, no

carotid bruite were

Q

A
raise the
the exter
partiai ¢

()

b

YOur opin

ever evident .

1f there were carotic bruits, would that

from vour opinion:

J

if rhere were carotid bruits, it would

gquectinon

nali caroti

[had}

tenosis o

Would

of whether there was a stenosis in
a artery or whether tnere was only a
the internal carotid arteries.

the presence of bruits work against

ien that Leonard was born without internal

carotid arterieg”

The pr

esence of bruits in and of themselves

wouid raise some question but wouldn't totally negate

tne opini

carorid arteries,

arteries.

Q

supportiv

on, because a bruit can come Ffrom the external

as welil as the internai carotid

You consider the absence of bruits to be

e of your

opinion of no internal carotid

You're going to have to repeat that

arteries in Leonard?
MR. TREADON:
question, Don.
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By CLb R

right.

importance vou're placi
are no pDruits Iinto your
without 1.0.a.¢ Okay v
and

bt

absence o bruirtgs plav

1'm tryving to get the

ng on the absen

7
D

of what you say

opinion that Leonard was born
Im asking vou, then, did the
a part in yvour opinion that

Leonard was born without internal carotid arteries?

A lhe absence of carotid bruits means to me
That we nave had a complete occliusion throughout the
entire perviod bilaterally from €/26 -- 5/26/86 through
1987

) Ihe answer Yyes"?

R ThE=UN Ao, his answer 1g what hé just
gave

MK LLEXR Yyour answer is "what he just gave.?
1'm asking the doctor for his ansver.

He

THE wWITAESS: A
carotid bruits Is that
longstanding lack -- to

the carotid arteries th
talking about here.
BY

MR, 1LER:

just gave 1t to vou.
My oanswer relevant to the
the -- there was a chronic
tal lack of blood flow through

roughout the time period we're
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Q 5/26/86 to 1987.

A Correct . TIhe angiogram, and in analyzing
the Doppler study, gives credence and relevance to the
opinion that these here congenitally absent throughout
his 1ife leading up to 1986.

Q you talked about these nubbins. You recall

Vour testimony?

A Yeg

Q ls that n-u-b-i1-n-s?

A 1e5.

Q And where did vou find the nubbings and
where did vou -- which side or both of the carotids?

A Wwhat 1 mean by that — since 1 don't think
that's a medical term -- 1is in the cerebral angiograms,

the right and left carotid, at the carotid siphon --
carotid bifurcaticn, not carotid siphon -- the carotid
bifurcation where the internal and esternai carotid
arteries separate from the common carotid artery at the
base of where the internal carotid artery should have
been in the right and left side is a very tiny pocket or
base of a blood vessel

That nubbin or small area was smooth
in configuration. Ilhat 1S where that's located at.

Q Doctor, when we finish the deposition
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today, will you take

draw out for us

-~

nubbin is?

Give

exnibit for us and

that

Tto US, we will have

is, where

absolutely sure, ail of

of the nubbin. Can vou

MP L. TREADON:

angiograms here in

suggest is that we take

doctor chooses,
something, circle what
clinicallv, but what
MR, TILER:
also, voctor,

gets misplaced. Make a

not going to be to scale,

arteriogram itself. Burt

is misplaced,

we can at least look at

memory sometime later.

a piece of paper

the area as

then give

when vour deposition

the surrounding structures are,

bon,

the office.

and have him,
he's
he'
1 wouid appreciate

in case, for whatever

it's marked or becomes smudged

27
and pencil and
large as you can where this
it to the attorney to mark as an
it to the court

reporter so

is transcribed and gets back

your diagram of wnere tnis nubbin

sOo that we are

us, and can rely on the location

do that for LIS?

how about -- we have the

khat +t'm going to

one of those, whatever one the

in grease pencil

referring to -- not

s referring to as a nubbin.

that, but do this

reason, the film

little diagram. he know it's

unless you draw over the

at least in case the one x-ray

in any way,

the diagram and refresh your
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so, 1 accept yvour offer, lTom, but if
you wiii still have the doctor make a diagram at his
leisure before we leave today, we'll be in good shape.
MK L. IKREADON T Fine.
BY MR. 1LtR:

¢ lhe iast thing 1 recall that led you to the
conclusion that Leonard had no internai carotid arteries
IS thig calcification.

A Ihe caicification mentioned on the boppler
study 1S evidence thar a very longstanding, many-vear
process wag present at the base or origin of where the
internal carotid arteries should hal-e been.

) Okav. Can you do this for me, Doctor?

Draw a diagram f~»r us of the area of calcification.

A 1 do not have drawings of the Doppler
stud!". A11 we have there iIs the Doppler study report.
9 From the Doppler study report, then, IS how

vou arrived at the conclusion of the Iccation of the

calcification?

A We can underline in the report where thev
mention calcifications. And calcifications in a
38-year-old gentieman means that this vascular -- OFr

39-year-old gentleman wnen he had the voppler done --

means that this process had L i p going on for many-
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years.
Q what 1 want to ask you to do, Doctor, is

please -- strike that.
So( ~hat-~"~"rteelling me iIs you

have no radiographic film to locate this calcification,
but you have the report which speaks to calcification;
is that correct?

A lhat's true.

9 would vou draw a diagram and -— make a
diagram for us, Doctor, have it marked as an exhibit for
us, of where you believe the report locates the
calcification you're talking about?

MR. TREADON: can you do that?

1l can do that.
) Very good. 1hank you, Doctor.
lhen, boctor, can L conclude --
Strike that.

Doctor, can we then beliel-e that
vour review of the arteriograms that were made of
Leonard in february of 1987 and ail the other medical
reports of Leonard which you have reviewed do not show
internal carotid arteries for Leonard? Am 1 right?

MR. TREADON: Did vou hear all tnat?

THE WITNESS: |'m going to have the court
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reporter read that back to me.
(whereupon, the pending
question was read back by
the court reporter,)

TEE wWiliNESSs kY lhat is correct.

By MR, lLER:

Q Ihank vou. Did vou review the O.P.G. of
Leonard that was made at aAkron uity Hospital on &/27,
19867

A Yes, 1 did.

) And do you have an opinion that vou're
going to render on that OQ.pr.G.7

A All that O.P.G. showed was a reduction of
blood flow in the righnt LO.P.G. svetem. 1lhat, in and of
1tself, does not sayv anvthing definite regarding the

vascular

supply through the right internal carotid
artery.
Q Is it your opinion, poctor, based upon
reasonable medical certainty, that the 0.v.G.

examination of Leonard Drogell on 5/27/87 at Akron city

Hospital does not refer to internal carotid arteries for
Leonard?

A What it shows 1S that there is an
abnormality in the blond fiow -- of the right-sided
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blood flow to the brain. Does not say anvthing
specific, because an 0.P.G. test is a very linaccurate,
nonspecific, by itself, test of the circulatory supply
to the right side of Mr. Drogell's brain.

0 poctor, is It your medicai opinion in this
case that the uo.P.¢. study of 5/27/86 does not show OFr
refer to existing internal carotid arteries for Leonard
Drogell?

A lt's my opinion that the 0.P.G. showed
blood flow going into his brain through the external
carotid arteries and the coilaterais; that those vessels
suppiieé blood flow through the ophthalmic artery to the
brain.

® ts it yvour opinion tnat the 0O.P.G. studies
of 5/27/80 for Lecnard brogell do not show internal
carotid arteries for Leonard Drogeli?

ME. TRtabon: 1'il object. Are you asking
whether or not tnat supports his position that there was
a congenital absence of internal carotids?

MR. 1LER: No. I'm asking the doctor if he is
telling us that the 0.P.G. study of 5/27/86 does not
show and did not show internal carotid arteries for

Leonard Drogeli. 1s that Khat he is telling us?

MR, TREADON: hell, 1'm going to object. 1 don't
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really -- if you understand the question, Doctor, you
can answer it, but 1 don't understand it.
THE: willabss: A The basics of the test,
O.P.G. 1s looking at blood fliow to or from the evye.
Ihis blood flow ran come from the internal carotid
artery or the external carotid artery.
All that a reduction of blood flow on

tne right o.r.¢. of that date meant iias that there was a
reducticon of overall blood flow to the right side of his
orpit, eve, on that date.

PY MKR. ILbE:

0 then can we conclude, Uoctor, that the

Q.P.G. gtudy of b/27/%6, 1in fact, visualized and did

14p]
-
[}
8]
7'
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5
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internal carotid arteries?

A trne cannot make that inrerpretation. The
U.P.G. IS not that specific.. it is not that accurate.

And in my opinion, the 0O.P.G. on that

date is only showing blood fliow through the ophthalmic
artery corning from the external carotid arteries, the
coilaterais that were verified to he present on the
later angiogram of 2/i3/87.

9] And do vou have an opinion, based upon
reasonable medical certainty, that tile 0o.r.G.s of

5/27/86 made at Akron City Hospital TOr Leonard Drogell
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indicate to yo

arteries?
MR, O JKE

answered, bor.

think -- i f he

A 1

) h
VO,

Doctor,

A B

IR Wil

no, accurately
reliability an
results based
the subseqguent
angingrams.

Q 0

A 1

uw that there were NO internal carotid

ADON: I'ii. object. Ihat's already been
He Just answered that Tor you. I don't
can answer |t for vou again a different

rv, Doctor.

he 0.p.G. does NOt -- vou're going to have

uestion again.

ave the court reporter read it back for

kayv.

NESb:e A
either wayv.

d accuracy

upon the subsequent

angiograms.

kay. Are yvou

eah, 1'm stili

and khat

(Whereupon, th
question was

by the court

One cannot say

But based upon
affects
Doppler
Predominantly,
stili there, b

here.

e pending
read back
reporter.)

that yes or

the lack of
the 0.P.G.

studies and

the

octor?
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@ $o, then, can we conclude your opinion of
the o.r.G.s insofar as them showing internal carotid
arteries for lLeonard brogell on 5/27/86, you cannot tell
one way or the other? ls that true?

A What 1 am saving ig that test Is not
accurate enough to make a yes or no answer, If 1 am
forced to sayv do 1 think that it showed that there were
any internal carntid arteries blood flow, my answer 1is 1
do not think the 0.P.G. showed any right carotid artery
blood flow.

it's my opinion that that O.P.G. was
showing hlood flow ceoming from the carotid -- from the

right externral carotid artery, as verified in the

subgsequent angiogram of 19&7.
0 How about the left carotid blood flow on

show blood flow from the

n
[N
—t

the O.P.G. of 5/27/86, does

ieft internal carotid artery?
A lhere is blood flow on the ieft side in the
O.F.G. Again, we have very significant collateral
circulation from the ieft external carotid artery
verified on the angiogram of 1987.
And again, an o0.p.G. is only talking
about hiood flow to a very specific area. (t is

affected by more than just the internal carotid artery
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or the external carotid artery.

One cannot say when one has O.P.G.
blood fiow that is ail from the internal carotid artery
Oor that there 1s any carotid artery blood flow
internally present.

Q boctor, have yvou written any medical

articles concerning l.l.A.s8 or strokes or any of the

i

subject matter of yvour opinions today, arteriograms?

A NO

() Ukav. ls there any medical textbook or
articles that you consgider authoritative in the field of
the opinion you have rendered?

ME. 1READOUAN: 1'11 ohject. ©You mean -- are you
asking is he basing his opinions on some authoritative
textbook?

MrR. ITLEK: ~No. Read the question back for

readorn.

.

ME . TREADON Thank yvou, Dbon.
(whereupon, the pending
question was read back by
the court reporter.)
MR. IREADON: 1'11 object.
BY MK. 1LER:

9] Go ahead, Doctor. You have to answer.
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My

36

opinion is based upon 18 years of

practice, multiple courses, multiple articles, multiple
journals, multiple books.

I don’t think 1 could say that there
1s one specific book that I coneider -- or article that
I consider authoritative, it's a compendium of
knowledge, working with cerebrovascular disease over
many, many vears.

stroke is one of the predominant --
1f not number one -- disorders that a medical
neurologist treats. it certainly 1s the number one in
my pracrice.

Q bo yvou Kknow of any medical authorities from
any source wnialgoever thatl you have come across in yvour
18 years of medicine that supports the opinion that you

talked about today concerning leonard Drogell?

ridicu

ridicu

MR .

ious

MR,

lous

MR,

JREADON : I''m going to object. That's a

guestion.

ILER:

quest

Q Yol have to answer the

ion, Docrtor.

TREADON : hait a minute. Are vyou asking him

is he aware of a case study identical to Leonard

Drogel

1's?

MK.

1LER:

Kead the question back.
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MR. TREADON: 1'm not going to iet him answer
that, as he has -- if you have an answer to that,
boctor, go ahead and answer it.

THE «ITNESS: A A name Or an article does
not pep in my mind concerning that question.

Py MR, ILER:

g Have you ever read in any medical journal

in the 18 years you have practiced where someone was

born witheut internal carotid arteries?

A les.

MR . HIRSHMAN: IToby Hirshman objects.

Q what was your answer, Uoctor?

A My answer IS yves.

0 And where will 1 find that literature or

case studyv?

A L don't know about a case study, in
particuiar, but in Taveras' texthook on neuroradiology,
there is mentioned the congenital absence of the
internal carotid arteries as an anomaly which can occur.

It is definitely rare, hut it iIs a known entity.

Q Can 1 have the spelling of that author,
please?

A First name is Juan, Taveras, I-a-v-e~-r-a-s.

v That's J-u-a-n?
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A Right.

0 And the name of his work, sir?
A biagnostic reuroradiology, and the textbook

that 1 am referring to is williams and wilkins, 1964.

1'm sure there may well have beern more recent editions.

() Okayv. And what company publishes the book,

poctor?

A pilliams and wilkine.

o Okay. Ihank you.

Q baotor, you review medical negligence
cases; do yvou not?

A I have over the vears, ves.

o How many cases have you reviewed over the
vearas?

A 1l would say in the realm of -- not just
medical negligence, but personal injury cases -- maybe
160G, 170.

Q How many medical negligence cases have you

reviewed?

A Maybe 80 --

Q And --

A -=- 990,

Q And for whom have you reviewed them, for

doctors or insurance companies?
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- Basically, 1've reviewed them for
attorneys' offices tnat hal-e called ana asked that 1
review them. 1'm assuming that they represent various
insurance companies.

W And have you testified in court on medical
negllgeEnce cases?

A I've testified, yes, in trial. £ think
mayhbe seven or eight times.

0 And have any of those trials been in
Chicago?

A thev'wve all been in Chicago or the collar
counties, You know, the counties right around chicago.

W Aand have you ever done a medical negligence
review for a nplaintiff's attorney?

A tes, 1 have.

Q And who would that be'l

A Mr. Jerry Salzberg; Fishman, fishman and

salzberg. 1've reviewed several

in his firm.

[N
e

for himself and people

Q He's in Chicago?

A He"s in Chicago.

Q And who'else, Doctor?

A [here's a Mr. Carr, C-a-r-r. 1 don"t
remember his first name. I reviewed two cases for him.
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ave bheen a couple of others over the years.

Q Are vou associated with any medical firm

T refers attorneve to vaou for reviewing medical

‘) fHave you done anv cases for Mr. Jreadon or

firm Iefore?

A N, 1 have not.
() How did Mr. lreadon come in contact with
A L believe that he toid me that he had been

referred to me by somebody in Medical Protective. I'm

not

=

[

i
T
Q

sure who.

8] The insurance company.
A Ve
9) Do you know Dr. HBarson (phonetic) or

Leavy (phonetic) at the (niversity of Cincinnati

o]
9
@

ot

schonl?
A ne, 1 do not.
9] Have you ever reviewed a case for tne firm

of vacobson, Mavnard, luschman and kalur in Cleveland,

Ohi

BY

0?

YK.

MK. HLIRSHMAN: Obijection, loby HIrshman.

LLEK:
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insurance

Cleveland,

MEL

:}"

review of

Q

Q

Y
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Go ahead, Doctor.

Ao, 1 have not.

Have you reviewed any cases for the
company called Physician's Insurance Exchange,
Ohio?
HIRSHMAN: objection, again. Toby Hirshman.

Ao, | have not.

Have you made any written reports of your
Leonard Drogell's case?

vyes, 1 did.

Give me the date of it, piease.

March 15th, 1990.

And who was it sent to?

susan Collins Berger.

And who 1g ghe?

Had been at Herbert, lIreadon and Benson.

I'd like to have a copy of that report.

what Is it, two pages, Doctor?

MR,

Mrs. Court

MR.

MK.

MK.

Seven pages.
ILEK: would you please have that marked,
Reporter, for me?
TREADON: hell, L'm going to object.
1LER: You can object. Just mark it and --

TREADON: I"m going to retain this. he have
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not exchanged any reports, and 1 don't intend to provide
one to yvou, unless vou have the Court order me to do
that.

MR, LLER: I will have the Court order it, but 1
want 1t identified
By MR. 1LEFR

®) How many pages 1s 1t, Doc?

A Seven pages.,

Q Aand the date vou gave me i85 3/15/907

A Correct.

W and lt's vyour review of the case of Leonard
Drogelli; right?

A Up through that date, but not inciuding the
review of the angiogram, Wwhich was foilowing that date.

% Okay. Did vou use your report in giving
vyour testimony here today?

A Basically, my opinions are in that report,
veah; correct.

& Okay. We'll make a demand for it, Tom.
Wwe'll do it on the record now and we'll take 1t up with
the Judge at a later time. I hereby make a demand of it
on the record.

MR. ['READON: I'11 take that under advisement.
we'll mark it right now. Kkhat are going to mark it as?
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What do you want to mark it?
MR. LLER Mark that Uoctor pepo Exhibit No. 3.
(Exhibit marked for
identification by the court
reporter as requested.)
MR . OLILER I'hank vou.

9 Uoctor, insofar as vour report IS —-- 1 mean
vour mecdical opinion is In this particular case, 1'm
going to ask you whether or not you are going to offer
an opinion at trial in this case for the foilowing
people; okay?

A A11 right.

6 £t is myv understanding that you have been
retained to give a medicai opinion on behalf of

br. Avery; am

A

9]
Dr. Goldman,
Hospital?

A

Q

1 correct?
That's correct.

Are you going to give an opinion as to

the emergency room physician, Akron City
no.

PDr. Burdette?

no.

Dr. Apgar?
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A NO .

Q Dr. caniiang?

A N,

) Dr. McRoberts?

A NG

Q br. weingarct?

N Lye

Q Drs. Miliers and shapiro?

A NO .

0 Akron City Hospitai?

A NO .

o) Akron General Hospital?

A NO

Q Medina Hospital?

A NOL

Q Fdwin Shaw?

A NO.

£ Okay. Ilhat cuts down -- may 1 jJust have a
minute? Ihat cuts down a 1ot of questions here, and if

1 could just have a second, 1'11 take those out of here.

MR. TREADON: Don, |'m going to clarify something
here. f don't intend to ask him questions about the
care provided by any of those other physicians.

I1f someone asks him a question about
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that, he may have an opinion. So, 1'm nNOot sure exactly
what your question encompassed.

MR, 1LER: lhe question 1s, I've got €O get ready
for a trial.

MR . tREADON: 1 understarid that.

MR. ILER: And 1 must know what the man is going
to testifyv and on whose behaif he's going to testify.

MR. TREADUN: He's testifyving on behalf of

MR. LLER: 1 understand that perfectly.
ME. TREADOAMN: put IF ne's asked by someone a
gquestlion concerning someone else, he may have an

£

opinion.

MR. L1LER: well o
Pl ~ IREsON : SO, you know, I'm not --
MR. 1LtR: well, ~ r wou offering your opinion

here for other people or just for br. avery?

MR. LREADON: He's here to answer questions
today, Don. Wwhat 1'm representing to you is he's been
retained by me on behalf of Dr. Avery.

MR. 1LER: Yeah, okay.

MK. IREADON: He may have opinions concerning
other doctors.

MK. 1LER: Okay. Before | leal-e this telephone
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ceposition, 1 must know iIf ne's going tOo exert any other

opinions. In fairness to everybody, you've got to let
me know that. 1f you're not, just tell me no and 1 can
cut off a Iot of questions. A1l right?

ME. IREBADOAN: 1'11 Object to that. 1'm not
sure --

MR. I LL~:%Yeah, okav.

W Doctor vou've treated patients with T.I.a.s
nefore?

A Yes, 1 have, manyv.

0 And do you consider a I.1.A. to be a

prestroke symptom?
EY 1t can pe, yves.
W And do you consider it to be a dangerous

syvmptom to have?

A it can be, yes.
Q And why 1S that so?
A Again, we're talking about it being a

possible prestroke symptom. Not all 1T.1.A.g, however,
you know, go on to strokes. some remain {.1.A.s, some
resolve. All that mimics a 1.1.a. iS not a 1.1.A.

1t may be a hemipiegic migraine,

which, in a young person, can be dramatic.
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Q Have you ever given a medical opinion in a
case where the issues of carotid artery occlusion were
similar to ieonard's case?

A I have not given opinions in a case quite
similar to this, no.

Q Have yvou ever given an opinion in a medical
negligence case where Leonard is supposed to hal-e had
1.1.A.s, such as vou have read in the records?

MR. TREADOAN: 1'iid object. Are you asking him
has he ever reviewed a case where the patient had 1.1.A.
involved?

MR. LLER: Yeah, such as leonard's.

IHE WIIAaESS: A As far as T.1.A.s, ves,

I have.
BY MR. 1LER:

Q Okay. But insofar as a patient such as
Leonard, from the initial treatment that he received in
Medina Hospitai May 25, '86 until his death, have you
reviewed a case such as Leonard's?

The answer is no, 1 assume.

A ihat's correct.

Q All right. Do you believe that IT.I.A.s
lead to strokes?

A They can.
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T.1.4a.

s cont

strokes, and

PO W O S

neyrologlcal

history, acor

the patierr

.
examination
arteriograms
17.1.4a. with
cof a patient

A

&

history and

48

Lo you have a percentage of that happening?

third of patients that have
inue have J.1.A.

s, a third go on to have

a ti without further

problems.

Lo vou base the opinion of a 17.1.A., on a
2% that help yvou in vour diagnosis of

I.t,a. di nslsg

o8}

o}

a1 is based on the clinical

and/or phyeical findings.

-

-
o]
[

kRay, Have you ever made a diagnosis of a

on clinical evidenc

e alone; that is, the way
presents to yvon?
Yoo o mean just the physical examination?
Ve
Ne, you'd need the history with it.

Between the history and the physical

of a patient, without having x-rav films and
and such, have you made a diagnosis of
simply a history and a phvsical examination

?

Yes, you can.

And how do vou arrive at that with just a

a physical exam?
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MEL. O TREADON: well, 1'11 object. You want to
tell him what higtdry and what physical exam, or do you
want him to give you classical signs and symptoms?

MR. LLER: Whatever he wantg to do.

ME . TRKEADON: well, 1'11 object.

YOU Ccan answer that guestion. I'm

net sure 1 ounderstand 1t, burt 1°

-

n~n0t giving testimony.
I1HE wITNESS: I'm not sure that [ fully

understand the guestion.

By MR, LLER:

Q A1l righrt. let's take a patient's history

such ag Leonarad’ Let's get specific and ask, can you

5]

make g diagnogis of Leonard's having a 1.1.A. with his
higrory and physical examination alone?

MR. TREADON: Objection. When?

ME . LLER: When he pregented at Akron City

L
.
oo
O
.

Hospital on 5/2

THe wlink

s

A 1 think that the physicians

7

that were there evaluated him. He came in with a
history of transient weakness of his left side. lhere
was an element of hypertension a.iso Dpresent.

He had been transferred to that
hospital from the referring hoespital, Medina Hospital.

and he was referred for apparent evaluation and CA7T
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scan. (al scan was performed and was normal.

symptom:: melted away and he returned to normal.
He -- with this history, the

physicians arrived at the potential diagnosis -

basicatriy, a differertial diagnosis -- at that

The

time, of

hemiplegic migraines, though they mentioned they co L1~ -

not rule out l.i A,

() Whepn you sav, "theyv," was it your

understarding more than one doctor examined Leonard

Drogell at Akron cCcity Hospital on 5/25/867?
A My understanding IS that only Dr.
the t£.R. phyveician, saw the patient during that

e

the k.

and insofar as the diagnosi

agree with by, Goldman's disgnosis of hemiplegi
migraines?

A lhat is a differential diagnosis t

reasonable, based on the patient's presenting f

on that date.

Goldman,

visit to

s, do you

C

hat was

indings

6 And you agree with that diagnosis by
Dr. Goldman, then; true?

A 1 think agreeing, you know, may be the
wrong word. 1s that a reasonable differential, based on
the patient's age, physical findings, history, normal
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CALl scan? l1hese were reascnable differentials on that
date.
W wWill vou testify that you agree or disagree
with Dr. Goldman's diagnosis of hemiplegic migraines?

I"m asking 1f you agree or disagree. I'm not asking you

n

~

if 1t's reaconahle, I'm asking 1f you agree.

.

MEL O IREADON: Objection. It's already been

MR OHIRESHMAN: Note my objection, too, Miss Court
Reporrer.,

IHE wWIlINESS: A 1f vou agree with their
differential diagnosis, yvou're agreeing with their
diagnosis.

ME L. HIRSHMAN: you're opening the door, Don.

BY MK. I1LbK:

o) okay. Are you also in agreement that
Lecnard vrogell should have been further examined to
rule out .l1.A.g7?

MR. HIRSHMAN: Objection. loby Hirshman.

A I'm not sure what vou mean by that.

Q After Dr. Goldman's examination of Leonard
Drogell on 5/25, he made a diagnosis; am I correct?

A Differentiai diagnosis, veg.

Q sal-s, "number oOne, probable hemiplegic
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migraines.” Correct?
A correct.
L we've talked about tho
"cannot rule out I.J.Aa." He wrote
A Yes.

se. And he wrote,

that down; correct?

e further testing of Leonard to ruie out T.1.A.7?

MR

Ms.

A

HIRSHMAN: Objection,.

MINKLER: Ubjection.

1t was my opinion that as of that time and

that emergency room Vvigit, the proper thing would have

been to arrange a neurological consultation. Ilhis had

been arranged with br.

date. AN

weingart for

the next office

outpatient neuro consultation was appropriate

at that time.

Y

consultarion with another phy

If Dr. Goldman did not

ask for a

csician, such

as

Dr. weingart, would Dr. Goldman have fallen below the

standard of care, in your opinion,

opinion on
MK.

Y K.

that point?

TREADON: objection.

HIRSHMAN: oObjection.
As far as 1 an aware,

this & hypothetical?

or don'

he did,

t you have any

so 1 don"t
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A

Q Yes.

[84]
)

A If he had, in this hypothetical Situation,

planned to return the patient to his primary attending

physician with the data involved ana letting that

primary attending physician arrange for a neuro

consultation, that would he proper, also.

) Would you answer my guestion?
~ 1 did.
Q lhen, if br. Goldman was not going to send

Leonard back to his primary treating physician With this

information, shon id

cecnsultation with a
MR, HIRSHMAMN:
2 Lo you

emergency roomy

) Yes, SI

= What 1I've

he

then have asked for a

Gdostor such as br. weingart?

me

r.

Objection.

ar right then and there in the

already said is 1 thought it was

appropriate that he arrange for that consultation in the

neurologist's office

neurcologist was not

i

re

would he quite appropriate. The

quired, based on the data

available on that exact date, to come in and see the

patient.
0 okay.

A Correct

And tnat's your opinion; right?
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6] Okedoke. When lLeonard wag discharged from
AKkron City Hospital on 5/25/&6, what treatment had he
received by Dr. Goldman?

MR. HIRSEMAN: Objection.

et

MR TEEADON: Well, 1'm going ta oblect.

ME ., LLER: Okay.

ME L OTREADON: You want him to review the chart on
that and tell vou what vou already know, Don? That what
we're going to do here?

MR, LLER: 1 don't want to do that. { withdraw
the guegtion. L don't want to repeat a lot that's
already in there. 1711 withdraw the question, okay?

MR. TREADON: Okay.

Y MR, O JLEKR:

Q Ookay., Pnctor, what do yvyou understand the
facte 11 this case to be that you are testifying on?

A Concerning --

MEL, TREADON: 1'11 object. can you be a littile
more specific?

MR. LLER: You asked Dr. vanna and Dr. Mundinger
what facts they relied on or what facts they understood
that were involved in the case, and we're just asking

the same question of yvour expert, what facts does he

understand to be involved in this case. same question
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thar was asked of

MR

was an appropriate guestion. 1

TREADON:

55

br, Vanna and br. Mundinger.

That, doesn't presuppose that that

don't believe you

obhjected to my question.
But are yvou agsking what salient
points or to summarize the facts as he understands them?
ME.L LLEFR I''ve got to know what he's basing his
opinion on,
IHE wiTNEwS A Ukay., and this is pretty
well outlined in myv letter, also.
Mr. Drogell was 38 when he initially

presented at t(he
room on H/25/86
on that date. Hoa

flaccid weakness,

Medina

communirty Hospital emergency

He presented there at about 10:00 a.m.

rerorted experiencing a left-sided

BY MR, 1LEK:

0 poctor, vou're reading from your letter of
report?

A yes, and this 1is myv understanding as 1 have
it in my head from the material.

Q) Yeah.

A He was seen in the emergency room by the
emergency room physician. Blonod pressure at that time

was 153/100. Dr.

Avery apparently was cailed.
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Ihe patient was then transferred to

Akron c¢ity Hospital for an emergency ¢.T. scan and
apparently -- and 1 don't know ali the ruies, but my
understanding ~ a ®he patient was then also seen in the

emergency room at Akren City Hospital, you know, for

reevaluatior as a part of their normai procedures.

He was transferred in a stable
condition with the ieft-sided weakness present. The
patient's blicod pressure at the time of that emergency
room evaluation was only modestly elevated, 153/100, not
uncommanly seen at the time of an acute hemiplegic
migraine or acute | .[.A,

wae
peri
ani

br.

cont
had

neur

At Akron Ccity Hospital the CAT scan

performed on 5/25/86 and was normal. During the
od of time at that hospital, the symptoms resolved
he was asymptomatic, according to the note by

Goldman.

br. heingart apparently had been
acted by br. Goldman, discussing what Dr. Goldman
told him, and had arranged for the outpatient
ological evaluation.

The patient then returned home, and

on the evening of 5/26/86 became unwell, compiaining of

abdominal pain, took some Pepto-Bismol, YOU know.
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Apparently, the abdominal pain got better, but
subsequently, after that, redeveloped the left-sided
weakness.

He was again taken back to the Medina
Community Hospital emergency room. lhe time of the
emergency room evaluation was about 1:00 a.m. o0n
5/26/786, At tnat time, his blood pressure was higher,
206/113, and a ieft hemiplegia and positive Babinski
sS1gn was present.

PDr. Avery was then contacted and the
patient was admitted. Patient's blood pressure was.
rapidly treated with his being given a sublingual tablet
of nitroglyecerin and intravenous Lasix. And shortly
after admission, the blcod pressure was down to around
160, 170/100.

He then was treated at Medina
Community Hospital and stabhilized for the stroke Which
occurred, He then was transferred to Edwin Shaw

Hospital 6/4/86 for a rehabilitation period to regain as
much function as possible.

buring the Medina Community Hospital
evaluation of 5/26/86, Dr. Burdette saw the patient in
neurological consultation. Ireatment during that time

was management -- appropriate management of the
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patient's hianod pressure.
And in view of his hypertension, he
was alco placed on antiplatelet medications, aspirin.

How far do we want to take it?

a s there more in vour report there?

A i take him through the entire -- vou know
through Akron General Medical Center's evaluation.

0 Lo oahead.,

A You want me just to read the report?

MEL. 1LER: If vou want to, sure.
MEL O OLIREADON: NOo, we're not gpomg to read the

repor., he're to summarize the facts.

0
)
.
=

Q

ME. 1LER: Whatever your lawyer wants, Doctor.
MELOVREADON: I'm not his lawyer, but you asked
that we summarize the facts as he understood them.

MELOLLER: fhat's right.
ME. THREADOMN: All righrt.,

IJHE WITNESS: A It was my opinion -- again,

this 1s -- well, that is not a facrt. we'll go back to

BY MR. 1LER:
0 Yeah.
A Completed stroke occurred at the time --

completed stroke occurred at the time of the 5/26/86

!

a




.
DO

for
e

19

20

21

22

23

24

[$3]
L

evaluation with a left hemiplegia being present.
0 Okay .
A kKetrospectively, in view of the fact that a

stroke cccurred, the episodes of numbness and tingling

that had gone on in the month previous to
the episodes of weakness were ]1.1.4A.S.

) okay .

A lhe intermittent 1.1.A.s can
completed stroke, which wag later verified
bilateral carotid occiusions --

() Yeah.

A -~ and are a natural part of

carctid occlusions, be

H
t
o,
=
D
+
o)

cerebrova

or absence, congenitally

1 my opinicn as to the itic of the ca

D

}_,l

o
Q
[

the stroke and

cuiminate in a

to be due to

the history of

scular disease

, ©f the carotid arteries, which

rotid

occlusions, based upon what we've talked about so far

today . lhe stuttering onset of symptoms |
frequently seen in thrombosis and consists

MK. HIRSHMAN: 1 seem to recall the
being a request for a summary of the facts
your opinion, rather than for a recitation
I°m going to object.

‘

BY MKR. 1LER:

@) Go ahead, Doctor.

s most

guestion as
underlying

of opinions.
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A findings of br. Burdette in his
neurological examination of 5/26, which, I guess, he
dictated on 5/27, was that he had 1 to 2- carotid

pulsation bilaterally with no bruits present.

Q Gnoahead,

A tellowing hig evaluation at Medina

nosplital, he wae transferred to tdwin Shaw Hospital.

A He received approximately five weeks of
therapy there, regaining his ability to walk with a
hrace ard cane. He then was stable until his admission
at ARron General Hospital of 2/7/87.

At that time, he experienced while
vatching televieion a partial complex or focal epileptic
selzure. He was hospitalized. A Doppler study, which
we 've already talked about, wag then performed.

A cerebral angiogram was performed,
revealing a bilateral carotid -- internal carotid artery
occlusions.

He went into a second period of
epilepsy called status epilepticus on 2/14 -- really was
about 11:20 p.m. on 2/13, but the predominant period of

seizures was on 2/14.

following many hours of seizures
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which were

Phenobarhb,

control, th

61
treated appropriately with Dilantin and
medications to bring the seizures under

e seizures came under control but he remained

in a comatosge and subsequent neurovegetative state.,

revealed th

brain, show

2/14/787.

infectionsg

C.1. brain scans on 2/7 and 2/14

e presence of bilateral cerebrovascular

‘ith a new one occurrying the left side of the

ing up predominantly on the CAT scan of

He subseguently had a number of
and subgequently died.
Okay. Doctor, 1'm going to turn to
care and treatment of Leonard Drogell.
All righr.

we ' 11 run through Dr. Avery's examinations,

his findings and his treatment; and at the close of it,

0

Q

that Dr. Av

ultrasounds

some opinions from yvou, 1f you have any, about

,.
7
m

y

A

o ahead.

Are you there, Doctor?

1'm here.

1g it true from your reading of the record
ery Knew that Dr. bBurdette had ordered

of Leovnard's carotid that were to be done at
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Akron ity Hospital on 5/27/867?

A
were ordered.
Dr. Burdette,

Y

care for Dr.
wore ordered
completed?
A
Q

studies wiich

Hospital -- ¢
MR . H1
MS. MI

MR. TK
BY Mr. ILER:
Q

A

study had bee

had to be tra

As far as 1'm aware, he did know that they
lhey here ordered on 5/26/86 by
ves,
and what kind of a physician IS Dr. Avery?
pr. Avery 1S a family practitioner.
Aand Dr. Buldette?
A neuvroicogliSt.
Okay. has i.t a breach of the standard of
Avery not to See that the uitrasounds that

for his patient of the carotids be

NO
Whose duty was It to see that the carotid

were ordered for 5/25/86 at Akron

ity Hospital be done?
RSHMAN :  objection,
NRLER: Uhijection,

EADON: 1'"11 object, also.

Okayv .
In the situation that that occured, the
n ordered by the neurologist. The patient

nsferred from his primary treating hospital
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to another hospital to get it done

Obviously, the equipment wasn"t
working, so a partial study was attempted and reported,
the report apparently not getting back to the hospital
record until after the patient was transferred for
rehabilitation.

The primary modes of treatment that
make a significant change in a patient that has had a
stroke is, one, treatment of their hypertension, if
hypertension iS present; aspirin as an anticoagulant in
the hypertensive patient that has had a stroke; and
rehabilitation.

A1l those three therapeutic
modalities were accomplished appropriately during this
hospital! stay. the laboratory studies, which are nice
to have in an attempt to define why the stroke occurred
or to define the anatomy of the stroke are, again, as 1
said, nice to have; but they are not medical
requirements in establishing the diagnosis of stroke oOr
in establishing the proper treatment of the stroke.

t'm not sure 1 answered your
guestion, but 1 think 1 did.

9] well, whose duty was it, then -- Do you

have an opinion as to whose duty it was to see that the
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caroetid ultrasounds ordered by br. Burdette on 5/27/86
at Akron city were to be done?

A 1 don “t know that it iias a duty of either
Dr. Avery or Dr. Burdette to make sure that they had to
he done. AT attempt was made to accomplish this, 1t
could not he accomplished, asgs the studies could not be
completed. lhey were the treating physician and

treating neurolngist, and their opinion apparently was

that th that it was not relevant to

T

Vowere not

regquired,

the patient gomevhere elgse for these studies.

) Y ou with that decicion?

-t

based on the total picture, with
those decigioneg; correct,
e wWas no responsibility for anvbody

elge that you are prepared to give an opinion on to see

that the carotids were done, such as nurses,
supervigsorg, nursing supervisors of any of the
hospitals; right?
A lhey would have no bearing on any of that.
Q lLet me ask you, Doctor, if the carotid

studies were done on 5/27/86, would they have shown the
absence of internal carotid arteries in Leonard Drogell?

A They would have shown a plcture consistent

with that -- similar to the bDoppler studies performed in
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1987,

correct.

Q lhen, if the ultrasounds were done 0N

5/27/86, they would have shown that there were no

internal carotid arteries in Leonard; true?
A Ilhat there was a complete occlusion;
correct. lhat there was no blood flow through the

internai carotid arteries bilaterally; correct.

g heii, my question was, then, if the

ultrasounds were done on 5/27/86, they would hal-e shown

that

true?

Leonard had no internai carotid arteries; is that

MR. TREADON: the Doppler or -- I"m sorry. Maybe

you better read that question hack.

MR. ILEF: lhe ultrasounds.
MR. TREADON: Just the ultrasounds,' okay.
THE WITNESS: A They would have shown the

same lack of blood flow in the carotid arteries that was

seen on the Doppler study in 1987, so 1 think --

the u

MR. 1LER: What vou are saying, Doctor, is that

Itrasounds that were done as ordered by

Dr. Burdette on 5/27/86, those ultrasounds would have

shown

that Leonard had no internal carotid arteries.
A Correct.
9 Was it a breach of the standard of care for
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Dr. Aavery not to have followed up after iearning that

the carotid studies ordered by Dr. Burdette were NOt

done?
MR. 1READOAN: Objection, he's answered that.
But yvau may answer it again.
A My answer is that obraining Doppler studies
was not -- or not obtaining them was not a breach of the

standard of care.

o
[

Q Do yvou recaglli a letter from Dr. sSweet at
the Edwin shaw Hospital to Lr. avery, and 1t was dated
on Jdune the t6th of 19867
Perhaps Mr. lreadon can find that for

vou, 1f vou need to Ionk at 1it.

A I've seen the letrter.

0 What was Dr. gweet asking Dr. Avery about
concerning Leonard?

A My understanding was he wagc asking for any
test results that had been obtained.

0 I'm looking at the second paragraph of his

letter, and it sal-s -- this is bDr. Sweet's letter of

June 6th of '86. He says, of note, "we did not receive
a copy of anl: results of carotid studies or echo
carciiogram. " Dpo you Ssee that?

A 1 see it.
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0 When Dr. Avery got that letter, do vou
think it was below the standard of care for Dr. Avery

not to have gotten thoce studies done or reordered them:

VELOLEF2DON: Objection. tirst of all, that

presupposes than Dr. Avery gaot that letter. { think he

testified, tonrn, he did not see it until the time you

took his depogition. 1T you're asking that typilcally -~-
ME. LLER: NG, Ilhe facts in the case -- do vou
see Dr. avery's letter to Dr. sSweet concerning
pr. sweet's letter, Doctor?
A Yee, 1 have.
W\ posan’'t he acknowledge Dr., sSweet's letter,

caving thart the ultrasounds, the results, were not done?

A yeal . It was ordered, but 1t was not

it wags below the

L3 We
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standzrd of car

D

for br. avery, once learning that the
vitracounds were not done for hig patient, to see that

they were done by somebody?

A NO
J and what's vour reason for that?
A My reason for that ig quite simple. Based

upon all that we know as neurologists and physicians

that care for people with strokes, there basically have
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very few real certifiable treatments for stroke.

Iln the hypertensive patient, meaning

arient with high blood pressure, reducing and
ing the high blood pressure reduces the risk of
er strokes. 1Thatr's been verified in man)' national
es over the last 30 vears.
G Do vou agree with the course —
A Let me finish with what 1'm saying,

1he other treatment for stroke is

ilitation. TIhat helps return function. 1he other
ments are ali noncertifiable, hopeful treatments,
2l things ~ h a help people with strokes but have
een verified in complete studies Or they are
pting to be verified or ruled out by ongoing
es.

And these include aspirin's effect in
ing the effect of stroke. That's probably coming

to being verified as heing a significant reducer
ture strokes.

The use or treatment of Heparin or

Coumadin, the risks of potential hemorrhage about equal

the b

of th

enefits of these treatments, canceling out the use
ese medications in the majority of patients.

lhe carotid surgery, the risk of
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stroke in most centers during surgery are greater than
the risk without the surgery.

S0, many arterial endarterectomies,
although many, many are done throughout ﬁhe country, 1is
a nonverified, nonreiiable treatment for strokes.

lhe tests which we do, carotid
screens, carotid Lopplers, carotid duplexes, cerebral
anglograms, are basically tests to identify the anatomy
Ol the stroke; and then these are used, at times, to
identify one of these potential hopeful treatments that
may aifect the future risk of stroke.

] bhere did you find in vour review of the
records the mechanism for Leonard's stroke?

A I think the mechanism of Leonard's stroke
1s based upon the history of what happened. 1 don't
think in the records there i1s aril-thing that says that
this is exactly Khat happened.

Now, how one analvzes the mechanisms

of his stroke --

Q poctor --
A You've asked a question. Let me answer it.
lThe ¢.1. scans show that he had
ischemic strokes -- that means thrombosis versus

embolism. Acot hemorrhage. There has never ani' e\-idence
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fhe epicodes of 1.1.4a. leading up to
the stroke point to a plugging up or thrombosis of an

artery cauvging that stroke, rather than an embolic
origin.

When one has emboli causing strokes,
one would never have different emhaoli affecting the same
blood veggsel all of Fhe time causing recurrent l..l.A.c
tha were very cloge to mimicking each other before the
onset of a efroke

sSo, a pliniwa] history leading up to
& strore, LAl gcans, his clinical presentatiorn, all
point ta oa thraombhaeis of a blood vecsel as the cause of
his stroks

@] Which --

A Ihe leading contributor to why this
occurred was the billateral absence of the carotid
arterjes, wvhich meant that the only blood flow to both

the right and left

normal, though it w

have his T.1.A. and

natural part of the
subsequent strokes.

Q What a

side of
as asymptomatic
eventual
history,

I'm done.

rrery

diseacse

his brain was

until

stroke and,

ana

was the embholi

not fully

he started to
goling on as a
the

disorder,

in that caused
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Leonard's stroke?

ME. TREADON:  Objection. He just testified it
wasn't enmboli.

MR, ILER: Pardon me?

MR. TREADOA: He just testified, in his opinion,
it was not embolic, that it was thrombotic.

By MR, LLLK:

) khere was the thrombus, Doctor, in
Leonard's stroke, what arterv?

A Clinically, based on where the area of
damage was seen on his second ¢.l. Scan during his May,
"6 admission, the area of the right cerebral cortex
suppiied predominantly by the right middle
cerebrovascular artery, predominantly the anterior
portion.

What we're seeing is a plugging up or
thrombosis of an endartery. These wouid be the most
distant portions of these arteries. The middle cerebral
artery, one can't rule out total involvement OF the
right cerebral artery.

hhat happens when there IS an
overreduction of blood supply in the brain, what we call
the watershed area of the brain, where minimal changes

in blood flow causes stagnation OfF the blood flow in the
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and a plugging up of the blood vessels and
damage to the hrain tissue.
poctor, 1 want to tell Dr. Mundinger and

Dr. Vanna -- vou Know the plaintiff's experts in the
cagce’?

A Yes

o I want to tell them exactly where you say
the thrombus occurred. Have you explained that for me
so L could explain 1t to Dr. vanna?

A I think 1 just answered thart.

6 Ifhank vou very much, Doctor.

A that's the first stroke.

o) How abnut the gecond stroke, Doctor,
where -- in whicr artery did that occur?

A i have not o eesn hils CaAl scans, but my
understanding is that on the first -- the third CAl scan

rtaker wh

of 1987,

frontal

occlusio
cerebral

artery.

could actuaily

21 he was admitted with hig geizures in February
was that a new legion wasg sgeen in the left
part of the brain.

now, that could be an endartery

N of the anterior portion of the left middle

artery or part of the left anterior cerebral

without seeing the ¢.[. scan, 1 don't think 1

say which of those two.
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tater, he had his fourth C.T.
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that, five days -- four

daye scan. And at the
time of that scan, a much larger area of infarction on
the distriburion of the left middle cerebrovascular
AYTEryY wags evident

ME FREADON: You stilil there?

M} 11ER: Yeal he're just rtrying to go through
“Oome questions we'll take a minute recess, 1f you
WOUuLa.

Mp JREADON: sure.

Mk 1LER Be Just a minute or so,

(bhereupon, "a short break
was taken, after which
the depogsition was
resumed as follows:)

By MR, I ER:

0 Doctor, when will | know whether you're
goling to give any opinions for any of the other
defendants in this case?

MK. HIRSHMAN: Yyou've asked him, 1om.

ME. TREADON: I'm going to object. Again, he's

been retained by
ask him

Ttreatment.

me OnN

guegstions concerning Dr.

behall of bLr. Avery. 1 intend to

Averyv's care and
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MR,

TREADON: What |I'm suggesting to you, Don,

there probablIy isn't an expert in this case that doesn't

have opinions concerning other people other than those

by whom they’ve been retained.

MR

limited.

to emergen

1LER: that's not true. Dr. Bergan was
And the other doctors' testimony was limited

oy room medicine. Lvery doctor has limited

his testimony.

.....

this docro

FREADON : I can assure yvou that my guestions
ILER: 1 don't care about vour questions to
r. l'm worried about this doctor giving

opinions about other phyvsicians, and | want to know

right now,

By MK. ILE

Ic e golng to testify --
R:

Doctor, are you going to testify on behalf

of any other defendants, other than br. Avery, in this

case:'

MR. TREADON: Objection. If your question is has
he been asked to by anvone, that's one question. is
that what your question is?

MR. ILER: 1'11 continue the deposition and you
go ahead. l'm not going to fool around anymore. We'll

leave the

deposition open in case yvou decide you're
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going to testifyv for other doctors here.
BY Mr. 1ILER:
0 boctor, do you agree with the statement

that 1t is true that 70 percent of strokes that occur

.y

ol

o
]
D
5]
[
®
8}
h
T

by one or more .f.A,

[63]

T

A I think 70 percent ig a high number. 1

think ir national statistic analvsis, about 50 percent
of strokes occuy without any 1.1.A.g whatsoever.
, then, would you say that, 1in your
opinion, 50 percent of strokes occocur after one or more
L.l.A, has taken place?

A 1 think that's accurate.

() And can y»nu ~-- do you agree that a T.1.A.

can last frop several minutes to several hours?

Q ls 1t true that the (.l.A. of a left

hemiplegic migraine 1t 1s typical that these symptoms

come and go?

A I.1.A. symptoms do come and go; that's
correct.

Q And can you rely that a I.l.A. has not

taken place because the symptoms have disappeared?
A Could you repeat that?

g sure. Repeat it for me, Miss Court

2%
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Reporter.

(whereupon, the pending

question was read back by

the court reporter.)

THE wilntss: A 1 think your question iIs: Can
vou rely on a 1.1.a. being diagnosed based on that the
symptoms disappear? 1le that the question? She read it
hack, hut ! dorn't think vou're saying it right.

By ME. ILEKR:

0 well, okay. Yes, the wav you phrased it is
fine. What's your opinion?

Q Poctor, let me help vou out here. Do vou
agree that go far a¢ 1.l.A.s are concerned, that they
are transitory in nature; they come and they go? Do you
agree with that?

A Yes.

o And do you agree that about 20 percent of

stroke patients that have

T.1.A.5 have those strokes

after the 1.1.A. has occurred within a month of the
attack?

. it might even be hire than 20 percent.
within that time period.
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Q You agree thnere 1S good evidence that a

T.I.A. can he abolished and eliminated by anticoagulant

drugs?

A I.l.a.e, at timesg, can be reduced in number
or stopped by antiplatelert medication, including
aspirin, Persantine and, at times, by Heparin or

Coumadin. One accepts the riskeg of Heparin and Coumadin

of hemorrhage.

O but as far as the aspirin or the other
drug -- 1've forgotten its name.

A ~~ 1 ~aa.lt

@) Have yvou used thmoger?

A yes, [ have

() Have they been useful to vour patients?

A 1 believe co

o Have they eliminated 1.1.a.s Tor your

patients?

A I believe sco,

(e
D
5]

concerned, have you used those for yvour patients?

A yes, 1 have,
Y Have they been curccessful in the treatment
1.1.A.7

A Again, Heparin is debated. Treatment in
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the sense of is it successful in reducing 1.1.A.s for
progressing on to strokes -—

U Yes.

A -~ and/or i1s it worth of risk of

hemcorrhage?

9] Yyour oplinion.
A st times, 1 use Heparin, 1 don't use
Heparin as much as we used many years ago. Aspirin and

rersantine has replaced perhaps 80 percent of the use of
Heparin in our area.

) Okay. Voctor, in your opinion, once a
diagnnsis of L[.1.A. has been made, should the patient go

on to an arteriogram?

A All patients that have 1.{.A.s do not need
arteriograms.

0 what diagnostic test should be done on a
patlient, in your opinion, who has had a I.1.A.7?

A Predominant testing is one, taking their
blood pressure so that one can reduce the hypertensive
blood pressure arid bring it dohn to normal or high
normal 1in that group of patients; the clinical
examination performed by a family practitioner or a

neurologist.

Q hell, should the patient --
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Ihose are the bottom line. Everything else

When vou say, "everything else is extra,"”
nclude in that ultrasound studies:’

tltrasound studies, again, are looking at

the anatomical reasons why did a 1.1.a. occur. 1t 1S

thought
prelim o

or nNot.

to be, you know, benign and noninvasive, as a

f deciding whether one wants to do an angiogram

Examining the carotids and whether

the presence -- bruits are present Or not are also veri-

importan

()

=

t.

Wwell, 1'm trying to get from you whether or

not, In your opinion, a patient should be taken in for

diagnost

studies,

A
9]
A
clinical

patient

ic studies, such as ultrasound, 0.P.G., Doppler
after a 1.1l.a. has occurred,
Do you have an opinion-on that?
sometimes yveg and sometimes NO.
What determines the yes part?
lhe ves part depends on the overall
picture, if one IS evaluating a younger

and one considers the symptoms which look like a

T.I.A. but which, based on the clinical situation one

finds themselves, and they think it iIs a hemiplagia, one




81
does not have to admit that patient for Doppler studies,
angiograms and the like.

One can evaluate the patient as an
outpatient neurologically and decide whether any studies
are necescary then or start whatever form of therapy is
required with or without these tests.

(2 'lhen, you would disagree with the
recommendation of once a diagnosis of a 1.1.A. IS made,
that the patient should be sent in for an arteriogram?

A I would say that the majority of patients
that have 1.l.a.g In thies day and age do not have
arteriograms.

the only reason one would do an
artericgram is 11 ~)!':ds highly suspicious about the
presence of a prsitive carotid bruit and, also, a
pogitive abnormal Doppler study and one 1S thinking of
surgery.

An angiogram is a dangerous test. 1t
has mortality and morbidity and one does not do it to
evaluate every stroke patient or one would precipitate

many more strokes than we already have.

It is a test as a preiim to other
forms of treatment.

W ls an arteriogram a necessary prelimination




O

A
would do a ca
angiogram.

()

I do not know of any vascular surgeon that

rdioendarterectomy without a carotid

Do o you agree that the more recent a T.1.A.

ie in 1te occurrence, the more urgent it is for
~

angiographyv t

if vou've got

therapy, bDoct

'

other drug I

-
[

therapies tha

D
Qs

discuss

A

cantiplatelet

we've already
0
further strok
A
again, a deba
prevent furth

that of aspir

o be done for that patient?

} den't know 1f that's true. 1‘don't know
more information for that question.

I think we talked about anticoagulant

or. You mentioned the aspilirin and the

ersantin

[§)]

., and then the use of Heparin.
Are there any other anticoagulant

t vou approve of or use that we have not

Aspirin and Percantine are the predominant

medications. Coumadin and Heparin, that
talked about, are others.

Okay. Does Persantine help to prevent

es?

Persantine can help prevent r.I.A.s. It's,
ted treatment, whether ¢r not it may help
er Strokes. It has the efficacy similar to

in.
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who c¢annot

83
it's basically used in the patient

take aspirin because aspirin upsets their

stomach, which 1S mavbe one aspirin a day, which may be

ten percen

9
parient?

A

Q
prevent th

A

t of the aspirin-taking treatment.

Then, you would give aspirin to such a

Yes.
How many aspirin would it take, usually, to
at stroke'? oOne aspirin a day, two aspirin?

1t tends to be debated. 1hey started with

four aspirins a day a number of years ago. it's

gradually
baby aspir
amount 1is

L

0

O

somebndy h

carotid?
A
Q
A

I don't th

as long as

come down to Oone aspirin a day Or even one
in or one aspirin every other day. The exact
not decided as yet.

what do vou uUSe for vour patients?

One aspirin a day.

Do you use anticocaguliant therapy when

as already had a stroke and has a disease of a

kes, 1 do.

why do you use that?

On the outside chance that 1t may help, and
ink taking one aspirin a day is going to hurt,

it doesn't upset their stomach.
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Persantine.,

k¥

dogsage?

upsets

far as Persantine

84

their stomach, 1 change

is concerned, what’s

3 7% milligrams twice a day Or 50 milligrams
three times a day, and It can g0 way UpP to 400
milligramg a dav.

Q In reviewing your records of Leonard
brogell, did you find that his heart was in good
condition for his age?

A My understanding wag his heart was 1in good
condition, Vves

W so far as Leonard's lungs were concerned,
did vou find that his lungs were 1in good condition?

A Yes.,

Q boctor, do vou have any opilinion as to
whether or not there was anyv medical or surgical

treatment
urogeii to

May 26, 19
A

been done
and the

in

stroke of

stopping the

that could have been
prevent his first
867

I don’t think that
between
5/26/786 would

stroke that

stroke,

the emergency

rendered to Leonard

which occurred on

anything that would have
vigit of 5/25/86

room

have made a difference

occurred.
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!} think that the stroke that occurred
was the initial clinical presentation of the congenital

absence of the bilateral internal carotid arteries and

that the stroke would -- was an inevitability.

() Okav. because of the carotid anomaly of
not having an internal carotid arteryv.

A Correct.

() T teonard would have had internal carotid

arteriesg, could there have been any treatment rendered

to him prior to his first gstroke on May 26, 198772

A would vou repeat that guestion?

) sure., If Leonard had had the internal
carorid arterieg that vou sayv he did not have ~- assume
that he had them, okay?

A AT riaht.,

0 Was there any treatment that could have

beer rendered Leonard Drogell from 5/25, when he went to

Medina Hospital and over to Akron ity Hospital, and

before his stroke of ™May 26, 'g67

3
O
rh
ot
e
v
n
v

A what 1s the hypothetical conditio
carotid arteries that are supposed to exist?

Q One was highly stenosed on the right side,
and the left carotid artery was open and patent,

A Ifn that hypothetical situation, in the
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hours that occurred between his initial evaluation and
subsequent stroke, 1 don't believe that any therapy
would have made a significant difference in preventing
this hypothetical stroke.

Q would there he any -- you said,

i3

"significant . Are you qualifying that and saying there
wouid he nothing that could be done to prevent the first
stroke, or there was something that could have been
done?

In a patient with hypertension, the only
anticoagulant that could be used would be aspirin. 1t
takesg a perind of time for aspirin to become fully
effective, usually greater than 24 hours.

lhe considerations of rapid analysis
and rapid surgery, 1 don't think these are things that
could have occurred that would have made a difference.

() Okav. Doctor, have we explored all the
opinions that vou are giving On behalf OF Dr. Avery?

We have talked about whether or not,
in your judgment, he should have followed up to see that
the ultrasounds on Leonard here performed.

We've spoken about that, and you've
given your opinion; correct?

A Kight.
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() you've spoken about the opinion whether
Dr. avery should have followed up after receiving a
letter from br. sweet at the Edwin Shaw Hospital, and |
think vou've given an opinion on that, that he was not
required to comport with tile standard of care by seeing
they were done; right?

MEL. TREADOMN: Objection to the question. You
asked him if he wag not required to comport with the
standard of care.

MEL, LLER: Oh, what § mean is -- Okay.

THE w1TNEgs: 1 did answer the question.

ME. 1LER: You understand what 1'm talking about?

THE WI1ANESs: Yes. 1 answered it.

BY MR. 1LER:

Q Ihern, are there any other opinions you're
going to give on behalf of br. Avery in this case that
we have not discussed?

MR. TrEADOAN: 1711 oOhject. 71here are questions
that I may ask him that you haven™t asked him, bon.

MR. ILEK: Ilhen 1 have to ask what those
questions are. L am not going to conclude with the
deposition until 1 hear the questions you're going to

ask him, so 1 can get some examination of him.

otherwise, 1 have no other questions,
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BY MK. ILER:

Q Doctor, you read Dr. vanna's deposition;
haven't vou?

A yes, 1 did.

Q Do yvou have any criticism of pr. Vanna's
opinion?

A 1 think there's a number of things I don't
particularly agree with.

0 can vyou tell me what chose are?

A One, you know, he was, you know, critical
of a number of things 1've already said 1'm not critical
of, which vou've alread!. asked me questions about, which
vou just elaborated. Let'S see what else.

) L1 vanna spoke to Dr. Avery and his
negligence. Do you recall that?

A 1 recall that.

Q And 1 assume you disagree with Dr. Vanna's
testimony and his opinion against Dr. Avery; an I
correct in that point?

A correct. 1 also significantiy disagree

with Dr. Vvanna's assessment that the vessels would have

been open, you know, if they had been studied on

5/26/86, And that's -- you know, I definitely disagree
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with that, as we've already talked about.
Q You're sal-ing there were no vessels
there --
A I'm sal-ing there were no vessels there.
0 -~ aren't you?
A cCorrect .
Q How about fir. Mundinger, did you have any

criticism of fir. Munding

tile person
A Basically,

signi

t‘-t,

icantly disagree w

consideration of o.r.¢.g

er as it applies to br. avery,

you're testifying on behaif of?

as we've already talked about, |

Ith pr. Mundinger 'S

being a significant diagnostic

test. we've already gone through that.

sagain, he talks about partial
stenosis being present in the carotid arteries and that
carotid surgery would be indicated.

It's my opinion that carotid

occlusion or absence of

throughout the diagnosti

about in this patient.
Q Okay.
A He talks ab

hypertensive patient. i

cerebrohemorrhage occure

the carotid arteries was present

c period of time we're talking

out using Heparin even in the

hat's the group of patients that

most often in. And
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hypertension IS a contraindication for Heparin and
Coumadii.

LDr. Mundinger's opinion that the
patient Nad emboliic Strokes rather than thranbotic
strokes, which we've already talked about.

1 think those are the big ones.

( LI'm sorry. Do you have more opinions,
A NOv,
0 Okay. You have privileges at the two

hospitals that you mentioned to us; right, Doctor?

A Ilhree,.
() Lutheran Hospital --
A Lutheran General Hospital, Lake Forest

Hospital and rtorest Hospital. lhree hogpitals.
¢ lhat's Khat I meant, forest Hospital.
Okayv. i think 1'm completed With questions.

Doctor, 1+ think. I may have asked you
this, but 1'm not sure. bid 1 ask you whether or not
‘there would have been any medical or surgical treatment
that could have prevented Leonard from having his second
stroke? Did [ ask you that?

A 1 don't believe vou asked me that. My

opinion is evervthing that could have been done for this
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patient was done TFfor this patient.

Q From the time frame vou're speaking about?

By 5/25/86 through his strokes in 1987 and
eventual vegetative State.

MR. 1LER: Okayv. Thank vou, Dboctor. 1 have no
other guestions.

MR. TREADON: Does anyvone else present have a
gquestion for Vr. hetel?

MR. HIRSHMAN: Toby Hirshman, bDoctor. 1 don't
have any questions for you.

MS. MINKLER: Pat Minkler. NG gquestions.

[
lon
T
=
=
~r1
.
=

> guestions. Susan swift.
MR. 1LER: Mrg. Court Reporter --
THE REPORTER: Can we go off the recofd?
MR, LLER: Yes. Let me know when you're ready.
(Whereupmon, a discussion was
had off the record, after
wvhich the deposition was
resumed as Ffollows:)
MR. TREADOA: lhat statement vou made isn't on
the record. You want that on the record?
MRK. ILER: Yeah.
MR. TREADON: Let's say it again, because she

wasn't typing when yvou were saying that.
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MELOTREADON: she's

MR, O LLER: Mra., Cou
type up thie deposition as
expedited basis?

I'm goi
and takes it to the Judge f

doctore this physgician 1is

opinion

IR hetel's Oopilnlons were
Dr. Averyv, and Mr. lreacon
other attornevs in 1he casg

upon, because we w

ase will agsk DLr.

92

et me Kknow when the reporter

rt Reporter, would vou please

gquickiy as you c¢an on an

ng to continue the deposition

or a ruling on how many

going to give an expert

ere to believe that

going to be only on behalf of

leading me to believe that

hetel opinion

gquestions art his videontape deposition or his presence at
trial and that rthe doctor would render an opinion for
any one of the other doctors in this case, if asked the

appropriate gquestions.

lhat's
1'm going 'to get a ruling
man's testimony to Dr. Ave
so, 1if

diagrams from the doctor,

and one showing the nubbin:

regquest was for --

what L'm led to believe, and

from the Court limiting this
ry only.

you would please get the two
one showing the calcification

and then, also, the third
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MR. TREADON: l'he reporct.

MR. 1LER: __ the report. with that, 1 will ask
for a continuance of this deposition.

MR. [READON: Let nme respond.

MR. 1LEkR: If 1 get some assurance in writing or
from the doctor that there will be no other opinions
rendered Ffor any other person, any other defendant in
the cacse, then, of course, [ would not go to the Judge.

MEK. TREADON: 1'm going to again state more
accurately what 1 stated to vou earlier.

And that is that 1 retained Dr. ketel
to act as an expert witness on behalf of pr. Avery and
Dr. waolf, for that matter; that 1 intend to ask him
guestions solely with regard to the isSsues concerning
Dr. Aavery's care and treatment of the plaintiff's
decedent and the issue, of course, as it relates -- and
ani' testimony he mal' have with relation to the issue of
proximate cause.

khat 1 indicated to you, Don, was
that 1 will restrict my questions to those issues. | f,
indeed, any of the other lawyers in this case pose
questions to Dr. ketei, certainly he has the opportunity

to answer those questions, if he has an opinion.

1 did not tell you that other
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attorneys may ask pr. hetel questions concerning the
care and treatment provided by their clients. That was
not what 1 gaid.
We will mark -- we have marked
Dr. hetel's report of March 15, 1990 as Exhibit Aro. 3.
Wwe will make the two -- Dr. hetel has consented to make
gsketohesz, as reguested, and we will mark thosgse asg
Exhikbits 1 and 2.
L guess that concludes the

deposition. Dy, hetel would like to read, as I
understand, his testimony.

ITHE WwWilINESs: Regerve signature.

MR. ILER: Mrs. Court Reporter, if -- whatever
Doctor wants, byt | want that copy with or without his
reviewing of it at the earliest possible time to take to
the Cnurzt. Ukay?

THE REPORTER: Yes .

M. ILER: Thank you very much.

THE wWITAESS: lhank you.

IHE REPORTER: Coples?

MRE. HIksHMAA: 1 don®"t think L1'm going to need
one.

MK. I'READON: boes anvbody want one other than

Mr. l1ller? Let's put it that way.
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MINKLER: he'll let you know.

ILEK: Off the record.

FURTHER DEPONENT

(hhereupon, a discussion was
had off the record, during
which the deposition was
continued sine die.)

sAITH NOT 1HIS Dax
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STATE OF 1LLI1AOIS )
COUNIY OF C O O K )

L, BAKBARA J. NICK, C.S.K., R.P.R. and Notary
Public in and for the County of Cook and state of
111linois, do hereby certify that W. BRUCE KETEL, M.D.,
was by me first duly sworn to tell the truth, the whole
truth, and nothing but the truth in the cause aforesaid;
and that the above telephonic deposition, pages 1
through 9%, was recorded stenographically by me and was

thereafrter reduc

Y'D

d to typewritten form under my general
supervigion,

Ihe foregoing transcript of the said deposition,
to the hest of my knowledge and ability, is a true and

correct transcript of the testimony

given by the sgaid
witness at the time and Pplace hereinabove referred to.
I am not interested in the within case, nor of
Kin nor counsel to any of the parties,
IN WITANESY WHEREOF, 1 have hereunto set my hand

and affixed my seal of office this ééléaizzzday of
gL~ . ALD. 1990,

____________ Dok

“ OFFICIAL SEAL * Certified $h
BARBARA J. NICK ‘o

L

hand Reporter

NOTARY PUBLIC, STATE OF ILLINOIS
MY COMMISZICN EXPIRES  6/8/%1
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